
Bethlehem Landfill Committee Meeting Minutes 

 

Date:  Thursday, April 18, 2019 

Time:  1:00 p.m. 

Location: Lower Saucon Township Council Meeting Room 

Attendance: Hanover Engineering:  Chris Taylor; Bethlehem Landfill:  Dave Pannucci & Astor Lawson; 

Staff: Leslie Huhn & Diane Palik; Members:  Neil Ortwein & Hazem Hijazi; Council Liaison:    

Priscilla deLeon (by speaker phone) 

 

Mr. Pannucci reviewed the monthly tonnages for March: 
 

        January               February  March                                          

MSW 25,878.48 23,887.16 20,422.10 

C&D 1,844.80 1,830.91 1,626.50 

Residual (Total) 2,084.66 4,883.87 3,811.30 

Asbestos 375.23 0.00 0.00 

Sewage Sludge (90/10) 90.92 73.65 109.00 

Out of State (Total) 19,777.74 (65%) 18,969.23 (62%) 13,361.40 (51%) 

Recycle 11 (82%) 5 (83%) 7 (86%) 

 

Mr. Pannucci said there was one Form U Submittal from Bostik, Inc. with contaminated soil on April 16, 2019. 

 

Mr. Pannucci said the Annual Groundwater Trend Analysis is scheduled for May 28
th
 through the 30

th
 by EarthRes 

Group.  There was no correspondence or reports.   

 

Mr. Pannucci said DEP inspections were on April 17
th
 with a clean water inspection from Chris Harding, and there 

is an engineering meeting scheduled for April 23
rd

 with the Solid Waste Team.  Mr. Pannucci said Chris Harding 

came to BL and reviewed Bethlehem Landfill’s EMR sampling submittals and all their files on their stormwater 

permits that they need to have in place.  They drove around the site and checked the basins to make sure there 

weren’t any issues.  Two of their basins have had high solids for the last two sampling events so that triggered them 

to have an action plan which they did, and stated they put filter socks to help alleviate the sediments from leaving 

the site.  When they are able to get in the ponds, they’ll take the sediment out of the ponds.   

 

Mrs. deLeon asked if the basins were near where they were having issues with water running over Applebutter 

Road to Ringhoffer Road.  Mr. Pannucci said all of their basins are along that road, but the water running over the 

road was from the tributary that flows along the stream, and he’s not sure how it relates to that issue.  Mrs. deLeon 

said you dump into that stream.  Mr. Pannucci said he doesn’t think it’s enough to the extent that was causing the 

overflow.  Mrs. deLeon said we’ll see when we have the next heavy rain.  Mr. Pannucci said there was a clog in the 

pipe so there shouldn’t be any issues.  That’s up to PennDOT to monitor and maintain that as it’s not Bethlehem 

Landfill’s (BL) responsibility.  Mr. Taylor said that’s been checked since it’s been cleaned out and it’s been 

flowing freely with the rains they had.   

 

Mr. Pannucci said the Host Municipal Inspections for the month were on April 4
th
 and April 18

th
 by Chris Taylor.  

The Commercial Waste Vehicles, total number of trucks should be 2,455 with overweight at 55, warnings 49 and 6 

suspensions.  Mr. Taylor said a combination truck is like a tractor trailer and is 80,000 lbs.  Anything other than a 

combination truck is 73,280 lbs., so everything from the garbage trucks to a roll-off.  NJ allows them to register at 

80,000 lbs., but PA doesn’t recognize that, they say it has to be 73,280 lbs.  It’s kind of a gray area between 73,280 

and 80,000 lbs. for trucks registered outside of PA.  There were emails back and forth and Roger Bellas from DEP 

said you have to follow this regulation which he cited it and attached it to the email and it says record vehicles if a 

vehicle has a weight over 80,000 lbs. and same thing for 73,280 lbs.  Mr. Pannucci said the way Bethlehem Landfill 

has been doing it is the correct way to do it.  If they have a situation where they deem the truck overweight and they 

don’t have a DEP sticker, they will allow the police to make that call if the vehicle can go back on the road as BL 

isn’t going to make that decision for a liability standpoint.  They will continue to do it as they have done it all 

along.   

 

Mr. Taylor said in the scale house today there were five tickets and only one was overweight and it was by 80 lbs.  

The regulations say the weight of the truck is inclusive of the driver’s weight and when the trucks weigh out, they 



Bethlehem Landfill Committee Minutes 

April 18, 2019 

 

     Page 2 of 3 

 

  

have the driver sitting in the driver’s seat.  He’d think the driver would weigh more than 80 lbs.  So that truck 

wasn’t overweight, and even if the driver got out, he’s still standing on the scales.  There’s wiggle room right there.  

Mr. Pannucci said they’ve talked about things like that.  Mr. Taylor said the monthly vehicle overweight laws are 

great, but if he gets a vehicle that’s 77,000 lbs., is that an 80,000 lb. vehicle that’s underweight or is it a 73,280 lb. 

vehicle overweight.  Mr. Pannucci said he thought they indicated that.  If it’s listed overweight at 77,000, it means 

that it must be a vehicle that should weigh 73,280 lbs.  If he’s on the log that you get every month, then he’s 

overweight.  The scale is calibrated twice a year.  

 

Mr. Pannucci said BRE is shut down for the foreseeable future.  The LFG flare is the main GCCS.  Bethlehem 

Landfill continues to communicate with SCS Field Services with any routine or non-routine in maintenance to 

maximize LFG production and minimize odors between the plant and flare.  The March average flare flow rate was 

2,769 SCFM.  They didn’t have any flare shutdowns in the month of March.  Mr. Taylor said BRE is out of the 

picture and you are accommodating the gas going to the flare.   

 

Mrs. deLeon said when you report to the Township on the flare, there are some reports that go to the end of the 

month and we talk about them, but what we need on the 3
rd

 Thursday of the month, we are going backwards 30 

days from the meeting date, so if anything happened between then and now, it should be reported so we don’t get 

delayed on information.  Mr. Pannucci said they didn’t have any shutdowns, and he’s gathering that from the 

monthly report, but he can update and report it.  For flare shutdowns, you want to know up-to-date information.  

Mrs. deLeon said yes, she wants to know what’s going on and not wait a month to find something out.  Mr. Taylor 

said that’s a good idea and BL will get the most current data for us.   

 

Mr. Pannucci said Mr. Taylor brought up if they have the 1Q SEM report and he just got it and they initially had 

five exceedances, which were all corrected in the 10-day re-check and still passed on the 30-day re-check.   

 

Mr. Taylor said you mentioned something in the field today about the Aria Energy plant proposal.  That plant 

would even be more sensitive to oxygen intake than BRE was, which he doesn’t take as good news as he wouldn’t 

mind if we pulled a little bit harder and send the gas someplace where oxygen didn’t bother it.  His concern is you 

aren’t going to be able to pull hard enough.  Mr. Astor said you need to keep the oxygen as low as possible as it’s a 

fire hazard if you don’t.  Mr. Pannucci said odor control is their number one priority so they want to draw hard 

enough so that they don’t have gas escape.   

 

Mrs. deLeon said Aria was on our agenda last night and we try to be very informative to our residents.  There is a 

new section on the website for Aria with the Power Point they presented.  They are going through a Special 

Exception process and are working on getting the Township copied on submitting their application ASAP and want 

to be on the June 17
th
 ZHB agenda.  They want to move the process along.  They talked about Basin 1 that they are 

going to be using and they have to make it lower.  Mr. Pannucci said what type basically need to do is refigure 

Basin 1 in order to fit the plan over there.  Basin 1 will have the same capacity; it will just have to be shaped a little 

differently to accommodate their facility.  The gas will all be flowing in one direction and they won’t be fighting 

and pulling into their plant different locations at the site if they do need to utilize the flare, so it makes it much 

easier to operate the flare and plant if need be.  Mrs. deLeon said it would always be their plant pulling the gas and 

BL would be on the backup.  Mr. Pannucci said his understanding is they are going to pull the gas in through their 

blower system and then feed Aria.  He will reach out to them and will have a conversation to make sure they are on 

the same page.  They are going to be the primary source of utilizing the gas, but flaring the gas makes no sense 

when you can utilize it as a renewable energy.  They will be the first priority to feed Aria as much gas as possible 

and the flare would be a backup at that point.   

 

Mrs. deLeon said she heard BL is putting up a second flare.  Mr. Pannucci said they have bids out for a second flare 

and the reason is to have capacity if they ever do go over the 4000 SCFM of the current flare.  Right now they are 

under 3000 SCFM.  They are trying to be proactive if their gas does creep up and honestly putting a flare that just 

sits there is the worst thing you can do to a flare, it’s just going to deteriorate, so they are waiting to see how their 

gas flows reacts, but they are still pursuing that. 

 



Bethlehem Landfill Committee Minutes 

April 18, 2019 

 

     Page 3 of 3 

 

  

Mrs. deLeon said when Aria showed them the map; they didn’t show the connection on how they are going to 

connect to your flare, which she thought was strange.  Mr. Pannucci said they won’t connect to BL’s flare; BL will 

feed them the gas.  They would process the gas.  There would be a gas line that fed their plant and they would feed 

their flare if need be.  BL’s flare and their flare won’t be connected in any way.  Mrs. deLeon said Aria didn’t show 

where they were getting it from.  Mr. Pannucci said it will just be a header pipe under the road crossing that feeds 

term the gas from BL’s blower station.    Mrs. deLeon said it should be depicted somewhere.  Mr. Lawson said the 

plans are submitted and they are their own entity and they don’t include any of BL’s things.  He would assume 

that’s why they aren’t showing the equipment.  Mrs. deLeon said she’s been looking at plans for 32 years and they 

always show a road that dead ends at their boundary line or a pipe or something.  Mr. Pannucci said they can throw 

a pipe on a map and solve that problem and Aria can show how the hookup happens. 

 

Mr. Pannucci said the North Slope Road and swale have not needed repairs.  Sedimentation traps and ponds need to 

be cleaned out.  The abatement system continues to operate and discharge to the Bethlehem WWTP.  Intermittent 

malfunctions of the well pumps and controls are repaired or replaced as needed.  Control Systems 21 is scheduled 

for April for maintenance on the transducers.   

 

The flow rates continue to be monitored and reported.  Intermittent malfunctions of the well pumps and controls are 

repaired and replaced as needed. The cleaning out of LMC-7 is scheduled for May.  General maintenance on PS-2 

is scheduled for April.  There were 7 radioactive loads for March and they met level 1 requirements and were 

disposed of onsite.  Waste operations for Phase IV construction activities have moved off of this area.  The SE 

Realignment activities continue in Cell SE-1A.  Construction of Cell SE-1B is underway. 

 

Mr. Pannucci said they received 9 complaints from November 24, 2018.  The last complaints received were on 

April 12
th
 and April 13, 2019 and it was Mrs. deLeon who called.  Mrs. deLeon said why did you pick November 

24, 2018?  Mr. Pannucci said that’s the last one he put on the list, he can go back further if you want him to.  Mrs. 

deLeon said why don’t we start with the beginning of 2018.  She asked has DEP discussed the odor complaints?  

Mr. Pannucci said as they get them, he reaches out to DEP.   

 

Mr. Taylor said reviewed his report which he will send to the Township.   

 

Mr. Taylor said the next meeting is on May 16, 2019 starting at 1:00 p.m.  The meeting adjourned at 1:45 p.m. 

 

                                                                                       
























